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Stephen F. Roth 
Aaron S. Eckenthal 
Cicero H. Brabham, Jr. 
LERNER, DAVID, LITTENBERG, 
  KRUMHOLZ & MENTLIK, LLP 
600 South Avenue West 
Westfield, NJ 07090-1497 
Tel: 908.654.5000 
Fax: 908.654.7866 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiff DyMOCOM Enterprise Inc.  
 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

 
DYMOCOM ENTERPRISE INC.,  
 
 Plaintiff, 
 v. 
 
ARMSTRONG INTERNATIONAL INC., 
RADA a/k/a KOHLER MIRA LTD.,  and 
KOHLER CO. 
 
 Defendants. 
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Civil Action No. 
 
 
 

 

COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR TRIAL BY JURY 

Plaintiff DyMOCOM Enterprise Inc., for its complaint, hereby alleges as follows: 

PARTIES 

1. DyMOCOM Enterprise Inc. (hereinafter "DyMOCOM"), is a corporation 

organized and existing under the laws of Canada, having its principal place of business at 

153 Degrassi Street, Toronto ON, M4M 2K8, Canada. 

2. Upon information and belief, Defendant Armstrong International, Inc. 

(hereinafter "Armstrong"), is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the 
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State of Michigan, with its principal place of business at 900 Maple Street, Three Rivers, 

Michigan 49093. 

3. Upon information and belief, Defendant Kohler Co. is a corporation 

organized and existing under the laws of the State of Wisconsin, and has its principal 

place of business at 444 Highland Drive, Kohler, Wisconsin 53044. 

4. Upon information and belief, Kohler Mira Ltd and its division Rada is a 

wholly owned subsidiary of Kohler Co. and is incorporated under the laws of the United 

Kingdom, with its principal place of business at Cromwell Road, Cheltenham, 

Gloucestershire GL52 5EP, UK. 

5. Upon information and belief, Kohler Co. directly or indirectly exercises 

control or direction over Kohler Mira Ltd. and its Rada division, which are all 

collectively referred to herein as the Kohler Defendants. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

6. This action is for patent infringement arising under the patent laws of the 

United States, 35 U.S.C. §§ 1 et seq.  Subject matter jurisdiction is conferred upon this 

Court under 28 U.S.C. § 1338(a).   

7. Venue is proper in this judicial district under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b), 

1391(c), and 1400(b).   

8. Personal Jurisdiction over Defendants exits because Defendants are 

contributing and/or committing the acts of patent infringement alleged in this Complaint 

in this district and have minimum contacts with this forum by way of at least the sale and 

importation of digital water appliance controllers including the Rada Sense system and/or 
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other products in this district either directly or through distributors or retailers, or by 

placing their products within the stream of commerce, which are directed at the State of 

New Jersey.  The defendants may sell similar products under different names, and this 

complaint is meant to be inclusive of those additional products even if not specifically 

marketed as "Rada Sense." 

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF 
Infringement Of United States Patent No. 7,477,950 

9. The foregoing allegations are restated and incorporated by reference as 

though fully set forth herein. 

10. United States Patent No. 7,477,950 ("the '950 Patent"), entitled "Method 

And System For Controlling A Network Of Water Appliances," was duly and lawfully 

issued on January 13, 2009, based upon an application filed by the inventors, Patrick 

DeBourke and Matthew Troke.  A true and correct copy of the '950 Patent is attached as 

Exhibit A. 

11. DyMOCOM is the owner by assignment of the '950 Patent, and has the 

right to sue and recover damages for infringement thereof. 

12. The Kohler Defendants design, manufacture and import into the United 

States a product line called Rada Sense, which is a type of digital water appliance 

controller. 

13. Armstrong is engaged in the business of importing into the United States, 

manufacturing, marketing and sale of, among other things, digital water appliance 

controllers in the United States generally and in the State of New Jersey. 
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14. Specifically, and by example without limitation, Armstrong imports, 

manufactures, markets, and sells digital water appliance controllers containing Rada 

Sense technology, including the Sense-Models DMV1, DMV2, DMV3 and DMV23. 

15. Digital water appliance controllers containing Rada Sense technology 

provides an appliance control system for controlling a plurality of sets of appliances in a 

network. 

16. At least Kohler Co. had notice of the '950 Patent since at least as of 

February 10, 2011 and thus the acts of infringement by at least Kohler Co have occurred 

with the knowledge of the '950 Patent and are willful and deliberate.  This action, 

therefore, is "exceptional" within the meaning of 35 U.S.C. § 285. 

17. The Kohler Defendants are in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) and have 

been and continue to directly infringe literally or under the doctrine of equivalents at least 

claim 1 of the '950 Patent by at least designing, manufacturing and importing in the 

United States Rada Sense for use in digital water appliance controllers. 

18. Armstrong is in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) and have been and continue 

to directly infringe literally or under the doctrine of equivalents at least claim 1 of the 

'950 Patent by at least manufacturing, importing, selling, and offering to sell digital water 

appliance controllers that include Rada Sense to the general public. 

19. DyMOCOM has been damaged by the infringement by the Defendants and 

is suffering, and will continue to suffer, irreparable harm and damage as a result of this 

infringement, unless such infringement is enjoined by this Court. 

20. DyMOCOM has no adequate remedy at law. 
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SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF 
Infringement Of United States Patent No. 7,756,590 

21. The foregoing allegations are restated and incorporated by reference as 

though fully set forth herein. 

22. United States Patent No. 7,756,590 ("the '590 Patent"), entitled "Method 

And System For Controlling A Network Of Water Appliances," was duly and lawfully 

issued on July 13, 2010, based upon an application filed by the inventors, Patrick 

DeBourke and Matthew Troke.  A true and correct copy of the '590 Patent is attached as 

Exhibit B. 

23. The Kohler Defendants design, manufacture and import into the United 

States a product line called Rada Sense, which is a type of digital water appliance 

controller. 

24. Armstrong is engaged in the business of importing into the United States, 

manufacturing, marketing and sale of, among other things, digital water appliance 

controllers in the United States generally and in the State of New Jersey. 

25. Specifically, and by example without limitation, Armstrong imports, 

manufactures, markets, and sells digital water appliance controllers containing Rada 

Sense technology, including the Sense-Models DMV1, DMV2, DMV3 and DMV23. 

26. Digital water appliance controllers containing Rada Sense technology 

provides an appliance control system for controlling a plurality of sets of appliances in a 

network including the ability to activate water appliances in a non-touch fashion. 
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27. At least Kohler Co. had notice of the '590 Patent since at least as of 

February 10, 2011 and thus the acts of infringement by at least Kohler Co have occurred 

with the knowledge of the '590 Patent and are willful and deliberate.  This action, 

therefore, is "exceptional" within the meaning of 35 U.S.C. § 285. 

28. The Kohler Defendants are in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) and have 

been and continue to directly infringe literally or under the doctrine of equivalents at least 

claim 1 of the '590 Patent by at least designing, manufacturing and importing in the 

United States Rada Sense for use in digital water appliance controllers. 

29. Armstrong is in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) and have been and continue 

to directly infringe literally or under the doctrine of equivalents at least claim 1 of the 

'590 Patent by at least manufacturing, importing, selling, and offering to sell digital water 

appliance controllers that include Rada Sense to the general public. 

30. DyMOCOM has been damaged by the infringement by the Defendants and 

is suffering, and will continue to suffer, irreparable harm and damage as a result of this 

infringement, unless such infringement is enjoined by this Court. 

31. DyMOCOM has no adequate remedy at law. 

REQUESTED RELIEF 

 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff DyMOCOM prays for the following relief: 

A. An order adjudging the Defendants to have infringed the '950 Patent and 

the '590 Patent. 

B. An order preliminarily and permanently enjoining the Defendants with its 

respective officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys, and all persons in active 
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concert or participation with any of them who receive actual notice of the order by 

personal service or otherwise, from infringing the '950 Patent and the '590 Patent. 

C. An award of damages adequate to compensate DyMOCOM for the 

infringement by the Defendants, along with prejudgment and post judgment interest, but 

in no event less than a reasonable royalty, such damages to be trebled pursuant to the 

provisions of 35 U.S.C. § 284. 

D. An award of DyMOCOM's reasonable attorney fees and expenses, pursuant 

to the provisions of 35 U.S.C. § 285. 

E. An award of DyMOCOM's costs.  

F. Such other and further relief as this Court may deem just and proper. 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 38(b), Plaintiff hereby demands a jury trial on all issues 

so triable raised in this action. 

LERNER, DAVID, LITTENBERG, 
  KRUMHOLZ & MENTLIK, LLP 
Attorneys for Plaintiff DyMOCOM  
Enterprise Inc. 

 
Dated:  December 31, 2012 By:  s/ Stephen F. Roth   

 Stephen F. Roth 
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO LOCAL CIVIL RULE 11.2 

 The undersigned hereby certifies, pursuant to Local Civil Rule 11.2, that with 

respect to the matter in controversy herein, neither Plaintiff nor Plaintiff's attorney is 

aware of any other action pending in any court, or of any pending arbitration or 

administrative proceeding, to which this matter is subject. 

Dated:   December 31, 2012 LERNER, DAVID, LITTENBERG, 
        KRUMHOLZ & MENTLIK, LLP  
      Attorneys for Plaintiff DyMOCOM  
      Enterprise Inc. 

 
 

  By: s/ Stephen F. Roth   
 Stephen F. Roth  
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Exhibit A 
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Exhibit B 
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